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DIRECTOR OF DEPARTMENT OF
)

PUBLIC SAFETY,
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 10-1993 PO



)

VINCENT CARR,

)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION 


Vincent Carr (“Carr”) is subject to discipline because he committed the criminal offenses of conspiracy to commit wire fraud, wire fraud, making a false statement, obstruction of justice, and moral turpitude under the color of law.
Procedure


The Director of the Department of Public Safety (“the Director”) filed a complaint on October 22, 2010, seeking this Commission’s determination that Carr’s peace officer license is subject to discipline.  We served Carr with a copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing by personal service on December 7, 2010.  He did not file an answer to the complaint.  

We held a hearing on April 11, 2011.  Neither Carr nor his representative appeared.  Assistant Attorney General Daryl Hylton represented the Director.

Findings of Fact

1. Carr was a licensed peace officer at all relevant times.  
2. Carr was assigned to the St. Louis Metropolitan Police Department’s Crime Suppression Unit at all relevant times.

3. Carr was responsible for enforcing the laws of the State of Missouri, making truthful reports, and conducting lawful searches.
4. From June 1, 2008, through approximately October 7, 2008, Carr together with others unlawfully conspired to commit wire fraud.

5. On June 5, 2008, Carr obtained a search warrant for the first floor of 1475 Arlington Avenue.  
6. The next day Carr and his partner searched the first floor of 1475 Arlington Avenue.  Carr’s partner, with the knowledge of Carr, also searched the second floor of 1475 Arlington Avenue where he recovered approximately seven ounces of crack cocaine, a loaded Stallard Arms, Model JS, 9mm pistol, and approximately $32,000.  He then falsely reported that he found the crack cocaine, pistol, and $3,710 from a couch on the first floor premises.
7. Carr had the knowledge that his partner kept the remainder of the money that was recovered from the second floor bedroom without reporting it to the St. Louis Metropolitan Police Department.

8. On June 6, 2008, Carr also booked an unrelated individual for possession of all the illegal drugs recovered from the first floor premises of 1475 Arlington Avenue, as well as the crack cocaine that was recovered from the second floor premises.
9. On June 6, 2008, Carr knowingly caused to be transmitted in interstate commerce electronic communications, including arrest and booking information sent by computer over and through the internet from the St. Louis Metropolitan Police Department in the City of St. Louis, 
Missouri, and ultimately to the National Crime Information Center (NCIC) at the Criminal Justice Information Services Division of the Federal Bureau of Investigation (“FBI”) in Clarksburg, West Virginia.
10. On September 17, 2008, during a meeting with Special Agents of the FBI, Carr and his partner knowingly and willfully made several false, fraudulent, and fictitious material statements and representations regarding the police search of 1475 Arlington Avenue on June 6, 2008.  
11. On September 17, 2008, Carr failed to advise Special Agents of the FBI that Carr detained a suspect in relation to the police search on June 6, 2008 of 1475 Arlington Avenue, who had admitted to possessing crack cocaine, a pistol, and United States currency.
12. On October 1, 2008, Carr concealed and failed to turn over handwritten notes made during the June 6, 2008 search of 1475 Arlington Avenue reflecting actual items located and recovered from the first floor premises.

13. On October 7, 2008, Carr and his partner falsely stated to the Special Agents of the FBI that they had turned over all evidence from the June 6, 2008 search of 1475 Arlington Avenue.
14. On October 9, 2009, Carr pled guilty in the United States District Court, Eastern District of Missouri to the offenses of conspiracy to commit wire fraud, wire fraud, making a false statement, and obstruction of justice in connection with the above incidents.  He was committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be imprisoned for 12 months and one day.

Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to hear this case.
  The Director has the burden of proving that Carr has committed an act for which the law allows discipline.
  The Director argues that there is cause for discipline under § 590.080(2) and (3):

1.  The director shall have cause to discipline any peace officer licensee who:
*   *   *
(2) Has committed any criminal offense, whether or not a criminal charge has been filed;
*   *   *
(3) Has committed any act while on active duty or under color of law that involves moral turpitude or reckless disregard for the safety of the public or any person[.]

Carr pled guilty to conspiracy to commit wire fraud in violation of 18 USC §1349, wire fraud in violation of 18 USC §§ 1343 and 1346 and 18 USC § 2, making a false statement in violation of 18 USC § 1001(a)(2) and § 2, and obstruction of justice in violation of 18 USC 
§ 1512(c)(1) and (2).  Therefore, Carr committed a criminal offense, and there is cause to discipline his license under § 590.080.1(2). 


Section  509.080.1(3) allows discipline when a peace officer has committed any act while on active duty or under color of law that involves moral turpitude or a reckless disregard for the safety of the public or any person.  In Brehe v. Missouri Dep't of Elementary and Secondary Education,
 which involved discipline of a teacher's certificate under § 168.071 for committing a crime involving moral turpitude, the court referred to three classifications of crimes:

(1) crimes that necessarily involve moral turpitude, such as frauds (Category 1 crimes);

(2) crimes “so obviously petty that conviction carries no suggestion of moral turpitude,” such as illegal parking (Category 2 crimes); and

(3) crimes that “may be saturated with moral turpitude,” yet do not involve it necessarily, such as willful failure to pay income tax or refusal to answer questions before a congressional committee (Category 3 crimes).
The crime of wire fraud, with the essential elements of fraud and dishonesty, is a Category 1 crime.
  Carr acted under the color of law to deprive citizens of the constitutional protections he was sworn to uphold.  Carr committed wire fraud while on duty at the St. Louis Metropolitan Police Department.  Therefore, Carr is subject to discipline under § 590.080.1(3).
Summary


Carr is subject to discipline under § 590.080.1(2) and (3).

SO ORDERED on May 31, 2011.


________________________________



NIMROD T. CHAPEL, JR.


Commissioner

�Section 590.080.2.  Statutory references are to RSMo Supp. 2010 unless otherwise noted.


�Missouri Real Estate Comm’n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 711 (Mo. App., E.D. 1989).  


��HYPERLINK "http://www.westlaw.com/Find/Default.wl?rs=dfa1.0&vr=2.0&DB=4644&FindType=Y&SerialNum=2011444175"��213 S.W.3d 720 (Mo. App., W.D. 2007)�.


��HYPERLINK "http://www.westlaw.com/Find/Default.wl?rs=dfa1.0&vr=2.0&FindType=Y&SerialNum=2011444175"��Id��HYPERLINK "http://www.westlaw.com/Find/Default.wl?rs=dfa1.0&vr=2.0&FindType=Y&SerialNum=2011444175"��. at 725� (quoting �HYPERLINK "http://www.westlaw.com/Find/Default.wl?rs=dfa1.0&vr=2.0&DB=350&FindType=Y&ReferencePositionType=S&SerialNum=1955121045&ReferencePosition=852"��Twentieth Century-Fox Film Corp. v. Lardner, 216 F.2d 844, 852 (9th Cir. 1954)�).


�See In re Carpenter, 891 A.2d 223 (D.C. 2006) (moral turpitude is inherent in crimes that have an intent to defraud or steal).  See also U.S. v. Morrow, 2005 WL 3163801 (D.D.C. June 2, 2005 and Johnson v. Commonwealth, 581 S.E.2d 880 (41 Va. App., 2003) (misdemeanor crimes of moral turpitude are limited to those crimes involving lying, cheating, and stealing).
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